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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Introduction

The directors present their Strategic Report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited financial
statements for the 52 week period ended 29 December 2019.

Business review

The principal activities of the Group are food manufacture and restaurant operations, alongside a portfolio of
other investments.

Food Manufacture

Shazan Fcods Limited (formerly 1Stop Halal Limited) and Shazan Frozen Foods Limited's (formerly Shazan
Foods Limited) principal activities are the processing and sale of branded, fresh Halal poultry and red meat
products to the UK retail, foodservice and wholesale markets. The business is the market leader in the branded
halal poultry sector and enjoys very strong, mutually beneficial relationships with the major retailers.

The directors believe that the business continues to provide a credible brand with both customers and
consumers. Increased volumes contributed to reduction in operating {ossas particularly during the final quarter
of the year, particutarly during the final quarter of the year. This improvement is expected to continue into the
long term.

Covid 19 impact on the manufacturing business was minimal overall. Factory operations continued throughout
while following government guidelines around social distancing and health & safety measures. There was no
overall impact on trading volumes. The effect of Brexit has been reviewed and is considered to have no material
impact to the business.

Restaurant Operation

The Restaurants gperation continues to commit in investing in its core assets (people, property and product), to
ensure customers receive the very best proposition delivered with industry leading value and provenance
through a range of brands and dining offers.

Cinnamon Collection Limited consists of five restaurants in London and Oxford. These are Cinnamon Club in
Waestminster, two Cinnamon Kitchens (City of London and Battersea Power Station), a third Cinnamon Kitchen in
the heart of Oxford, and Cinnamon Bazaar in Covent Garden. Cinnamon Club is widely viewed as a London
“Institution". The other restaurants in the Collection operate with the same ethos of growing through excellence in
hospitality and product, at different price points aimed at different audiences.

Giraffe Concepts Limited is principally involved in the operation of all day casual dining restaurants. On 21
March 2018, creditors approved plans to enter into a Company Voluntary Arrangement ("CVA") allowing the
business to exit 25 poor performing stores, with rent reductions on a further 13 stores. The Company has
continued to invest in the existing brands to enhance customer experience and increase operational efficiencies.

A group restructure was performed en 13 May 2019, whereby 100% of the ordinary shares of Gourmet Burger
Kitchen (UK} Limited (formerly Fishworks 2 Limited) was acquired from Boparan Ventures Limited by Boparan
Restaurants Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Invest Co 1 Limited,

On 23 August 2019 the Group sold 100% of the ordinary shares of Boparan Ventures Limited, renamed Deep
Blue Restaurants Holdings Limited, to Deep Blue Restaurants Limited.

Page 1
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Business review {continued)

In March 2020, the UK faced unprecedented chalienges from the Covid 19 pandemic. The Restaurants
businesses took immediate steps to safeguard the health and wellbeing of our employees and customers in line
with government guidelines. The UK Government announced all restaurants were to close an 20 March 2020 for
what was the first of three Lockdowns. All employees based in the restaurants and a large number of Head
Office employees were furioughed, the remaining Head Office employees worked from home.

All the restaurants reopened and traded for takeaway, delivery and eal in during the summer and early autumn,
taking advantage of the Eat Out to Help QOut scheme in August. Restaurants were closed for dine-in from 5
November 2020 due to the second Lockdown, and whilst 2 number re-opened on 2 December 2020, this was
dependent on the relevant tier restrictions in force. The third Lockdown came into effect on 4 December 2020, -
with all sites again closed for dine-in. A roadmap to lifting the restrictions was announced on 22 February 2021
and will see outdoor restaurant spaces opening on 12 April 2021, and dine-in resuming on 17 May 2021.

Carluccio’s (UK) Limited (formerly Anglesey Poultry Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Boparan Restaurants
Holdings Limited, acquired the trade, brand and selected assets of Carluccio’s on 21 May 2020.

Fishworks 2 Limited was renamed Gourmet Burger Kitchen {(UK) Limited on € November 2020, following the
acquisition of the trade, brand and selected assets of Gourmet Burger Kitchen on 14 October 2020.

Other tnvestments

The group owns a 50% share of Buffaload Logistics Limited, whose principal activity is haulage. Management
have focused on key areas for opportunity, cost savings and improved planning effectiveness whilst maintaining
key service levels to all customers. The business has retained its fleet size during the year without the need for
significant investment. The fleet includes an industry-leading number of double deck trailers with the capacity to
deliver additional 70% volume than standard single-deck trailers.

The group also owns shares in Table Art Limited and LoDough Limited, all of whom continue to grow and
develop their businesses throughout 2019 and ongoing through 2020. A decision was made for Thyme Food UK
Limited to cease trading on 31 January 2020. On 19 September 2019 Corkers Crisps Limited became a
subsidiary as a result of the group acquiring a further 2.97% of the share capital. Corkers Crisps traded
satisfactorily in 2018, however a substantial fire on 30 May 2020 resulted in the tempcorary closure of the
Corker's factory until it can be rebuilt. The directors remain satisfied with the progress of their investments.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, assess and mitigate major business risks that could impact on
the business. Monitoring exposure to risk and uncertainty is an integral part of the management process.

The principal risks and uncertainties are:

i. Price increases cn key commadities

i. The impact of avian influenza on the fresh poultry supply chain, mitigated with contingency plans in the
supply from a wide estate of farms

ii. Loss of retaiter own label business, mitigated through the supply chain supporting confidence in product
quality and provenance

iv. Health & safety issues, which are regularly menitored and independently assessed

v. Technical issues, which are continually monitored and subject to regular external independent audits

vi. Altracting & retaining the right number of good quality employees

vii. Property costs and energy prices

viii. Regulatory and legislative impacts

Page 2
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Section 172(1) statement

As a Board and a Group, we understand our long-term growth and success are dependent on engagement with
stakeholders. We continually explore how to make our decision making process more inclusive in order to
involve our key stakeholders. The leadership teams of the businesses make decisions with a long term view in
mind, and with a focus on delivering quality to cur consumers and customers. In order to fulfil their duties the
Directors and decision makers in each business take care to have regard for each of the different stakeholders
and the likely consequence of their decisions on these stakeholders for both the short term and tong term.

Our decision making process through the current pandemic is one of many examples where we consider alt
stakeholders. The impact of COVID-19 has been widespread and we have consulted with all our stakeholders as
we continue to manufacture food, maintain logistics, and operate cur restaurants. We aim to minimise our
impact on the environment and respect the livelihoods of those working in our supply chains. it is our ambition to
be the employer of choice within the sectors in which we operate.

Financial key performance indicators

The business uses a range of performance measures to monitor and manage the business effectively, These
are both financiaf and non-financial and the most significant of these are the key performance indicators (KPts).

The key performance indicators are turnover, gross margin, factary efficiency, overheads and profitloss before
tax. The key non-financial performance indicators are customer service, health & safety, technical compliance

and employee tumover.

The key financial performance indicators are shown below:

52 weeks

ended 29 30

December December

2019 2018

£000 £000

Turnover 142,023 180,667
Gross profit ‘ 60,559 78,030
Qverheads 28,189 106,353
Profit/(loss) for the period 38,860 {33,145)

All of the KPlIs, except for profit/(loss) for the period, have decreased primarily as a result of the cessation of
Food Utopia trading in August 2018 and a reduction in sales and gross profit in the restaurants business.

Overheads include an exceptional gain of £42,333,000 (2018: exceptional loss of £9,516,000). The exceptional
gain in the current year primarily relates to a loan waiver. The exceptional loss on the prior year relates to
impairments of tangible and intangible fixed assets.

The Group has net liabilities of £85,431,000 (30 December 2018: £129,846,000). This includes an amount of
£98,770,000 (30 December 2018: £130,950,000} owed to related parties, The Group is funded through funds
received from related parties.

Page 3
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Future developments

The existing business and future growth are funded from the continued financial support of a related party
undertaking (Amber REI Holdings Limited). Amber RE! Holdings Limited has committed to provide sufficient
liquidity and financial support where needed. The business continues to commit to investing in its core assets
(people, property and product), to ensure customers receive the very best proposition delivered with industry
leading value and provenance.

The directors Going Concemn assessment has been set out in note 2.2 of the note to the financial statements.

This report was approved by the board on 28112021 and signed on its behalf.

Todle Eands

T J Curle
Director
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the 52 week period ended 29 December 2019.
Principal activity

The principal activities of the Group are food manufacture and restaurant operations, alongside a portfelio of
other investments.

Results and dividends

The profit for the 52 week period, after taxation, amounted to £38,860,000 (2018 - loss £33,146,000).
There were no dividends in the year (20718: £Nil).

Directors

The directors who served during the 52 week period and to the date of this report were:

R S Boparan

S Henderson

T J Curle

J A Charles (resigned 27 February 2019)
G M Edwards (resigned 27 February 2019)
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Group strategic report, the Directors' report and the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’. Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a frue and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Company and Group for
that period,

In preparing these financiat statements, the directors are required to:

. selact suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pasition of the
Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements and cther information included in Directors' reports may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Employment of disabled perscns

The Group is committed to a policy of recruitment and promotion on the basis of aptitude and ability without
discrimination of any kind. Management actively pursues both the employment of disabled persons and
retraining of employees who become disabled whilst employed by the Group,

Employee involvement

The Group recognises that its principal asset is its employees and their commitment to the Group's service,
standards and customers. The Group's personne! policies ensure that all employees are made aware on a
regular basis of the Group's policies, programmes and progress. Communication methods to employees vary
according to need and will include but are not limited by, country and function updates, email bulletins, business
briefings, podcasts, intranet, extranet, internal newsletters, direct correspondence (where appropriate),
information and consultation forum, team meetings and management briefings.

The Group offers equal opportunities to all employees and applicants regardless of race, creed, sex, ethnic
origin, age or disability. Disabled persons are considered for employment where they have appropriate skills and
abilities to perform a iob. Empioyees who become disabled during their working lives will be retained in
employment whenever possible and will be given help with any necessary rehabilitation and retraining.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 23 DECEMBER 2019

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others

how to engage
employees. Fwe

opportunity to have a
vaice, have meetings

fair pay, clarity of
direction, mutual

information videos for
our restaurants

What matters CcoviD - 19
Why we engage |How we engage |mostto our How we respond [specific
stakeholders considerations
Our people
One of the key factors [We get to know our  [Enployee safety and | Comrrunication Tl'n our menufacturing
to running e successful |teem rmembers and w ellbeing, career and [new sletters and/or businesses, there are
business is knowing give themtha personal development, [noliceboards, social distancing

measures, with
training, support and

closaly with our
customers to let them
know our product
range, capabities, NFD,
and that w e can meet
their requirements to
maintain continuity of
supply.

In the restaurants, our
guests are at the heart
of everything we do,
and afl initiatives fotus
on clear guest
conyrunication.

engage directly with
buyers, working on
tenders, presenting
new products, and
engaging w ith
customer audits,

Restaurant brands
communicate in store
and through digtal and
social communication,
There are focused
promutes and a clear
and simple feedback
process.

supplied at the right
price, level of service
and on time defivery,
w ith consistency of
supply and technical
corrpliance.
Specifically for aur
Halal feod businesses,
it is important thatwe
hold ful accreditations
to all certified bodies.

Our restaurant guests
w ant the opportunity to
enjoy their experience
and have any
feedback handled
appropriately.

customers, w ith an
efficiant order
process, regular
contact and
conmvunication from
commercial team

We track all social
statistics, complaints
and feedback fram our
restaurant guests.

undarstand the level of {and an opportunity for |respect and enjoyment |colleagues, regular advice on w orking
passion our tearrs have |feedback atwork. appraisals and safely. FPEEE

for the job, we are a feedback provided and there are
step ahead of the There are training and regufar COVID

| carrpetition, development briefings.

progranTres, internal
We w ant enployees to |communications and a In our restaurant there
have pride in w hat they |regular appraisal and have been issues with
do and, in the Company. |review process. closure of sites and
colleagues have been

It is important for our furloughed. YWe
Jerrployees to feel ensure we are

valued, sowe have to corunicating
understand w hat is reguiarly with those
important to themand not at worke

keep themupdated on

prans for the business.

Our custormers

Our manufacturing Our manufacturing Our retail custormers  |We are alw ays there  |Regular contact w th
businesses work corrmercial lears w ant products for our retad retailers to reassure

them of continuity of
avaiabilty and supply.
We are able to advise
that w e follow
government guidelines
in allfactory
processes,

In our restaurants, we
ensure that we have
staff and supplier PPE

- |in place, there is

appropriate staff
treining and a full risk
assessment process.
We corrply with Track
and Trace and
comunicate our
COVID accreditation.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others (continued)

guarantee product to
sellto our customers.

There is constant,
ongoing communication
with suppliers.

there is a regular
tendering process.

What matters CovVID-19
Why we engage |How we engage |mostto our How we respond |specific

stakeholders considerations
Our suppllers
We let suppliers know |Our purchasing teams |Healthy sustainabie Wa w ork closely to We cormmrunicate fully
our requirements and  |w ork directly w ith supply refationship, provide feedback on  |any variation in supply,
standards expected, so |supplier sales creditw orthiness and |debvery performance |including any peaks or
that they meet our contacts, supply imely |financial stabiity to and quality of reduced demand.
expectations. purchase orders, and |meet our commitirents. |product/service.

provide regufar We ensure suppliers

Without supplier forecasts on Suppliers are have appropriate PPE
partnerships we cannct|requirements. benchmarked and on site and are able to.

deliver product safely,
particularly to our
restaurants.

accrediations our
retailers require.

In our restaurants
business there
selective engagement

audits & inspections,
site visits and contact
with the accrediting
bodies.

to ali trace bodies_

The restaurants
jeadership sit on
steering meetings and
actively engage in all
intiatives.

Trade bodies

R is particularly We retain active Maintain relationship Maintain standards In our factories, we
tmportant for our Halal [merbership of all w ith afl regulatory required by all food derpnstrate we follow
customers that we meet|necessary trade bodies and and specific halal government guidelines
standards in orderto  |badies. There are defronstrate food autherity bodies. in altactory

use the necessary regular rmeetings, satety and compliance processes and

rraintain a safe
w orking environment.

In our restaurants we
follow best proactive
initiatives such as AA

Our restaurants are a
rational brand but with
a local presence.

engage in local charity
initiatives.

around UK Hosphality, Covid Secure
property partnerships accreditations.

and CSR groups.

Our communities

We take our Qur major Thatwe are a Our major Act responsibly by
res ponsibilities to the manufacturing responsible employer | manufacturing follow ing government
local community businesses have that respects our businesses have guidefines in a factory
sariously. Qur regular meetings with |neighbours, local regular meetings with |operations and
manufacturing local neighbourhood  |community and the local neighbourhood  {rmintain a safe
businesses seekto ba |groups. w ider envirenment groups, maintain w orking environment,
aw are of our impact on relationship w ith local

the local community. Cur restaurants council officers.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions -
All directors benefited from qualifying indemnity insurance policies in place during the financial period.
Post balance sheet events

As at 29 December 2019 there was no explicit evidence of human to human transmission of COVID 19, The
subsequent spread of COVID 19 does not provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the year end and
is therefore considered to be a non adjusting post balance sheet event in accordance with Section 32 of FRS
102. Accordingly, the development of COVID 19 has not been reflected in the directors’ assessment of the
measurement of assets and liabilities such as impairment of tangible assets, expected credit losses and the
recoverability of deferred tax assets.

Covid 19 impact on the manufacturing businesses was minimal overall. Factory operations continued throughout
while following government guidelines around social distancing and health & safety measures.

The Restaurants business took immediate steps to safeguard the health and wellbeing of employees and
customers in line with government guidelines. The UK Government announced all restaurants were to close on
20 March 2020. All employees based in the restaurants and a large number of head-office based Restaurants
employees were furloughed, with the remaining Head Office employees working from home. All the restaurants
reopened and traded for takeaway, delivery and eat in during the summer and early autumn, taking advantage of
the Eat Qut to Help Out scheme in August, All sites closed again from 5 November 2020 for eat in due to the 2nd
lockdown and whilst a number re opened on 2 December 2020 depending upon the relevant tier for each
location full closure for eat in came into effect on 24th December 2020. A roadmap to lifting the restrictions was
announced by the Prime Minister on 22nd February 2021 which will see cutdcor restaurant spaces open on 12th
April and eat in resuming on 17th May. :

Carluccio's (UK) Limited (formerly Anglesey Poultry Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Boparan Restaurants
Holdings Limited, acquired the trade, brand and selected assets of Carluccio’s on 21 May 2020. Fishworks 2
Limited was renamed Gourmet Burger Kitchen (UK) Limited on 6 November 2020, following the acquisition of
the trade, brand and selected assets of Gourmet Burger Kitchen on 14 QOctober 2020,

During the final quarter of 2020 the business signed a licence agreement with a leading Halal food business. The
key part of this agreement is that all sales of Shazan branded frozen products will be made through this
business, with Shazan Frozen Foods Limited no Jonger selling directly to retail or wholesate customers. The
partnering business will sell the Shazan brand frozen range under licence with a royalty payable to Shazan
Frozen Foods Limited who retain full ownership of the brand. This long term agreement is a strategic mave to
achieve a sustained profitable run rate free from trading risk.

Financial nsk management

The financial support provided by a related entity, Amber REI Holdings Limited, means that there is low liquidity '
and credit risk.

The Group operates within a framework of weekly reporting which covers performance measures for profitability
and cash flow, managing the drivers of the business in a controlied manner, so as to minimise the financial and
operational impacts and risks upon the business.

Regular consideration of cash flow forecasts allows the Group to ensure the business is operating within the
committed funding which is available,

Page 9
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 DECEMEER 2019

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors’ report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company and the
Group's auditor is unaware, and

. the director has taken all the steps that ought 10 have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company and the Group’s auditor is aware of that
information,

Auditor

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the
Companies Act 20086.

This report was approved by the board on . 28/712021 and signed on its behalf.
Tolle tunde

T J Curle
Director
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

Opinion

Wae have audited the financial statements of Invest Co 1 Limited (the ‘parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the
'Group') for the 52 week period ended 29 December 2019, which comprise the Consclidated Statement of
comprehensive income, the Consclidated and Company Balance sheets, the Consolidated and Company
Staternent of changes in equity, the Consolidated Statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Company's affairs as at 29
December 2019 and of the Group's profit for the 52 week period then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the parent company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit

Qur audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties,
including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and
Brexit. A#f audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and the related
disclosures and the appropnateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financiat statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company's future prospects and
performance.

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the
date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of unceriainty, with the full range of possible
outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these
uncertainties when assessing the company's future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be
expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications far a company associated with
these particular events,
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INVEST CO 1 LIMITED {CONTINVED)

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to repor in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

. the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Group's or the parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the risks associated with the company's business,
including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit, and analysed how
those risks might affect the company's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the period of at
least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are autherised for issue. in accordance with the
above, we have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of
reference to a matenal uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicily stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstalements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

. the information given in tha Group strategic report and the Directors' report for tha financial 52 week
period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Group strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.
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DocuSign Envelope 10: D16778AF-68AF-4AAB-A3F8.B3C4DCODDESS

INVEST CC 1 LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INVEST CO 1 LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Group strategic report or
the Directors' report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement on page 6, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Company'’s ability fo continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent Company or to cease aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditor's report.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INVEST CO 1 LIMITED {CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has bean undertaken so that we might state to the Cempany’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume rasponsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Grat Thormien & was?

Andrew Wood

Senior statutory auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Leeds

Date: zg/7/2021
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

52 week 52 week

period period
ended ended
29 30
December December
2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Turnover 4 142,023 180,667
Cost of sales . (81,464) (102,637
Gross profit 60,559 78,030
Distribution costs {4,163) (3,238)
Administrative expenses (66,469) (94,051)
Exceptional items 5 42,333 (9,516}
Other operating income 6 110 452
Operating profit/(loss) 7 32,370 (28,323)
Share of profit from associates 453 302
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 11 7,215 -
impairment of listed investments - (3,904}
Interest receivable and similar income 12 3 6
Interest payable and similar expenses 13 (1,200) (1,104)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 38,841 (33,023)
Tax on profit/{loss) 14 19 (123)
Profit/{loss) for the financial 52 week period 7 38,860 (33,146)
Total comprehensive income for the 52 week period 38,860 {33,146)
Profit/{loss) for the 52 week period attributable to:
Owners of the parent Company 38,860 (33,1486)
38,860 {33,146)
]

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

There were no recognised gains and lcsses for 2019 or 2018 other than those included in the Consolidated
statemant of comprehensive income.

There was no other comprehensive income for 2019 {(2018; £Nif).

No adjustment has been made for the share of profits attributable to the non-controlling interest of £1,968,000
(2018: losses of £435,000).
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INVEST CO 1 LUIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 09062170

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 29 DECEMBER 2019
29 30
December December
2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Fixed assels
Intangible assets 18 5,857 9,141
Tangible assets 16 17,274 18,742
Investments 17 3,806 3436
26,937 31,318
Current assets
Stocks 18 4,416 3,242
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than
one year 19 547 419
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 19 12,134 13,213
Cash at bank and in hand 20 2,795 8,370
19,892 25,244
Creditors; amounts falling due within cne
year 21 {122,359) (171,672}
Net current liabilities (102,467) (146,428)
Total assets less current liabilities (75,530) (115,109)
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 22 {9,811) (9,605)
Provisions for liabilities
Other provisions 27 {90) {5,132}
{s0) (5.132)
Net liabilities (85,431) {129,846}
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" INVEST CO 1 LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 09062170

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

AS AT 29 DECEMBER 2019
29 December 30 December
2019 2018
Note £000 £060
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 28 . 1,000 1,000
Profit and loss account 29 {86,431) {130,8485)
{85,431) (129,846)
e |}

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on
28/712021
Tolle larle

T J Curle
Director

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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INVEST €O 1 LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: #9062170

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 29 DECEMBER 2019
29 30
December December
2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 15 108 -
Investments 17 5,907 5,819
6,015 5,819
Current assets
Debtors Within One Year - 19 3,090 2,438
Cash at bank and in hand 20 58 120
3,148 2,558
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 21 {25,365) (28,369)
Net current liabilities {22,217) {25,811}
Total assets less current liabilities {16,202} (19,992)
Net assets excluding pension asset {16,202) (19,992)
Net liabilities (16,202) (19,992)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital ) 28 1,000 1.000
Profit and loss account brought forward (20,992) (14,678)
Profit/{loss) for the 52 week period 3,790 (6.314)
Profit and loss account carried forward {17,202) (20,992)
{16,202) (19,992)
—

The Company reported a profit for the period ended 29 December 2019 of £3,790,000 (30 Decemnber 2018:
loss for the periad of £6,314,000).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on
28/7/2021

TdCurde 7y tuile
Director

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Equity
attributable
to owners of
Called up Profit and parent
share capital loss account Company Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2018 1,000 {130,846} (129,846) {129,846)
Comprehensive income for the 52 week period
Profit for the 52 week period - 38,860 38,860 38,860
items directly credited to equity* - 5,555 5,555 5,555
Other comprehensive income for the 52 week
period - 5,555 5,555 5,555
Total comprehensive income for the 52 week
period - 44,415 44.415 44,415
Total transactions with owners - - - -
At 29 December 2019 1,000 {86,431) (85,431) {85,431}

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.

* ltems direclly credited to equity relate to changes in ownerhips interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of contral.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2018

Equity
attributabie
to owners of
Called up Profit and parent
share capital loss account Company Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2018 1,000 (97,700) (96,700} (96,700)
Comprehensive income for the period
Loss for the period - (33,146) (33,146) {33,146)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - {33,146) (33,146) {33,146)
Total transactions with owners - - - -
At 30 December 2018 1,000 {130,846) {129,846} (129,845)

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Called up Profit and
share capital loss account Total equity

£000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2018 1,000 {20,992} {19,992)
Comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the 52 week period - 3,790 3,790
Total comprehensive income for the 52 week period N 3,790 3,790
At 29 December 201% 1,000 {17,202) {16,202)

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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INVEST CO 1 UMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE §2 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2018

Called up Prefit and
share capital loss account Total equity

£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2018 1,000 (14,678) (13,678)
Comprehensive income for the period
Loss for the 52 week period - {6,314) {6,314)
- 6,314 6,314
Total comprehensive income for the 52 week period { ] ( )

At 30 December 2018 1,000 (20,992} {19,992)

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2019

29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) tor the financial 52 week period 38,860 (33,146)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,574 927
Depreciation of tangible assets 4,841 5,371
Impairments of fixed assets 548 6,761
impairment of intangible fixed assets - 2,755
Impairment of investments 259 -
Loss on dispasal of tangible assets - 453
Profit on disposal of subsidiary {7,215} -
Loan waiver {42,924) -
Net fair value losses recognised in P&L - 3,904
Interest paid 1,200 1,104
Interest received {3) &)
Taxation charge {19) 123
{Increase)/decrease in stocks {658) 1,325
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 2,707 (63)
Decrease in amounts owed by participating ints - 38
{Decrease) in creditors {8,100} (3,779)
Increase in amounts owed to participating ints 18,387 20,779
(Decrease)/increase in provisions {991) 1,058
Share of aperating profit/{loss) in associates {453) (302)
Corporation tax received/(paid) - (120)
Net cash generated from operating activities 8,013 7.182
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (200) (171)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {4,657) (7.785)
Sale of tangible fixed assets - 538
Purchase of unlisted and other investments 244G (125)
Purchase of fixed asset investments {283) -
interest received 3 6
Cash transferred on disposal of subsidiary . (907) -
Net cash from investing activities - {5,804) (7.518)
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of loans
Repayment of/new finance leases
Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 52 week pericd

Cash and cash equivatents at the end of 52 week period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 52 week period comprise:

Cash at bank and in hand

The notes on pages 26 to 71 form part of these financial statements.

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand
Trade facilities and overdraft

Borrowings

Bank loans
Finance leases
Prefarence shares

29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
(7,137) 2,869
{230) -
{417} (1.104)
(7,784) 1,765
(5,575) 1,431
8,370 6,939
2,795 8,370
2,795 8,370
2,795 8,370

31 DecemberCash flows Acquisitions 2% December

2018 and 2019
disposals
£000 £000 £000 £000
8,370 (4.908) (667) 2,795
(10,345) 7,137 {1,310) (4,518)
(1.975) 2,229 (1.977) (1.723)
- . (308) (308)
(346) 230 (1,139) (1,255)
(8.082) - - (8.082)
(10,403) 2,459 (3,424) (11,368)
]
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

1.

General information

Invest Co 1 Limited is a parent company incorporated in the United Kingdom. Its registered office is
Colmore Court, 8 Colmore Raw, Birmingham, West Midlands, United Kingdom, B3 28J. The principal
activity of the Company is disclosed in the Directors' Report.

Accounting policies

21

2.2

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
specified within these accounting policies and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102,
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland, and the
Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are made up to the Sunday nearest to the period end
for each financial period.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act from
presenting its individual prafit and loss account.

The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£).

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. it also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
Group's accounting policies (see note 3}.

The parent company has taken advantage of the following exemptions on the basis that it is a
qualifying entity;

« from preparing a statement of cash flows;

+ from the financial instrument disclosures, required under FRS 102 paragraphs 11.39 to 11.48A
and paragraphs 12.26 to 12.29;

+ from disclosing the Company key management personnel compensation, as required by FRS
102 paragraph 33.7. .

Going concem

In March 2020, the UK faced unprecedented challenges from the Covid-19 pandemic. Across the
businesses, immediate steps were taken to safeguard the health and wellbeing of our employees and
customers in line with govemment guidelines. This situation is monitered closely, and has baen taken
into consideration when determining whether the Group’s financial statements can be prepared on a
going concemn basis. The Directors have prepared forecasts for each business considering the
implications of the Covid-19 pandemic and, particularly in the case of the Restaurants business, the
Government support available and the roadmap to the lifting of restrictions.

A related undertaking, Amber RE} Holdings Limited, has confirmed that it will provide continued
support if required to enable the Group and Company to meet their liabilities as they fall due for a
period not less than 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. The Directors
have satisfied themselves that Amber RE| Holdings Limited has sufficient funds to be able to support
the Group and Company as required.

The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

' NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2,

Accounting policies {continued)

23

2.4

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Company and its own subsidiaries
("the Group") as if they form a single entity. Intercompany transactions and balances between group
companies are therefore eliminated in full.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of business combinations using the
purchase method. In the Balance sheet, the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities are initially recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. The resuits of acquired
operations are inciuded in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date on
which control is oblained. They are deconsclidated from the date control ceases.

In accordance with the transitional exemption available in FRS 102, the Group has chosen not to
retrospectively apply the standard % business combinations that occurred before the date of
transition to FRS 102, being 1 August 2014,

Associates and joint ventures

An entity is treated as a joint venture where the Group is a party to a contractual agreement with one
or more parties from outside the Group to undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
controf,

An entity is treated as an associated undertaking where the Group exercises significant influence in
that it has the power to participate in the operating and financial policy decisions.

In the consolidated accounts, interests in associated undertakings are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under this method an equity investment is initially recognised at the
transaction price (including transaction costs) and is subsequently adjusted to reflect the investors
share of the profit or loss, other comprehensive income and equity of the associate. The
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes the Group's share of the operating
results, interest, pre-tax results and attributable taxation of such undertakings applying accounting
policies consistent with those of the Group. In the Consolidated balance sheet, the interests in
associated undertakings are shown as the Group's share of the identifiable net assets, including any
unamortised premium paid on acquisition.

Any premium on acquisition is dealt with in accordance with the goodwill policy.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Accounting policies (continued)

25

286

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured as the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
taxes. The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

«  the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer,

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the Group will receive the consideration due under the transaction; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the fransaction can be measured reliably.

Turnover ganerated in our own restaurants is recognised at the point of sale net of taxes. Franchise
development fees are recognised when a franchise opens the related store for trading which is
generally when we have fulfilled all of our commitments in respect of the fee. Ongoing franchise fees
are based on franchise store salaes to customers and are recognised in the period to which those
sales relate. Licence fees are based on licence sales to customers and are recognised in the period
to which those sales relate.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between amounts paid on the cost of a business combination and
the acquirer's interest in the fair value of the Group's share of its identifiable assets and liabilities of
the acquiree at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is amortised on a
straight line basis to the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income over its useful economic
life.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. After recognition, under the cost model, intangible
assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

All intangible assets are considered to have a finite usefui life. If a reliable estimate of the useful life
cannot be mada, the useful tife shall not exceed ten yoaars.

The estimated useful lives range as follows:

Deveilopment expenditure - 3 years
Goodwitl - 20 years
Trademarks - 3 years
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2,

Accounting policies (continued)

27

28

29

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets under the cost model are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

At each reporting date the company assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognised where the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives range as follows:

Long-term leasehold property - Over the term of the lease
Short-term leasehold property - Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery - 4.7 years

Motor vehicles - 6 years

Fixtures and fittings - 7 years

Assels under construction - No depreciation charge until the asset is
brought in to use

Computer eguipment - 3years

Office equipment ~ 3 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, or if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting
date. :

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are assessed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. Where there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired, the carrying value of the asset (or cash-generating unit to which the
asset has been allocated) is tested for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset's camrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's (or CGU's) fair value less costs to seil and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets that have been previously impaired are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to assess whether there is any indication that the impairment losses
recognised in prior periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

Valuation of investments

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment,
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 DECEMBER 2019

Accounting policies {(continued)

2.10 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being the estimated selling price less
costs to complete and sell. Cost is based on the cost of purchase an a first in, first out basis. Work
in progress and finished goods include labour and attributable overheads.

At each balance shest date, stocks are assessed for impairment. if stock is impaired, the carrying
amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2,11 Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. Loans receivable are
maasured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no
more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
cverdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management,
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2,

Accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Financial instruments

The Group only enters into basic financial instrument transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors, loans from banks and other
third parties, loans to related parties and investments in non-puttable ordinary shares.

Debt instruments {other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans
and other accounts receivable and payable, are initially reasured at present value of the future cash
flows and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments that
are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and creditors, are measured, initiafly
and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid
or received. However, if the arrangements of a short-term instrument constitute a financing
transaction, like the payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normat business terms or financed at a
rate of interest that is not a market rate or in the case of an out-right short-term lean not at market
rate, the financial asset or liability is measured, initially, at the present value of the future cash flow
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument and subsequently at amortised
cost.

Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of sach
reporting period for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of impairment is found, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Consclidated statement of comprehensive income.,

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the impairment [oss is measured as the difference
between an asset's camrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment ioss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract.

For financial assets measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between an asset's carrying amount and best estimate of the recoverable amount, which is
an approximation of the amount that the Group would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the

balance sheet date.

Financial assets and fiabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance sheet when
there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.14 Creditors

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including bank
loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of fransaction costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The Company's functional and presentational cumrency is GBP.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are transfated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss except when deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income within ‘finance income or costs'.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or Joss within 'other operating
income’.

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are ftranslated into Stering at rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place. All assets and liabilities of overseas
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on
translating the opening net assets at opening rate and the results of overseas operations at actual
rate are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.16 Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to profit or loss over the term of the debt using the effective interest
method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount, Issue costs are
initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument.

2.17 Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2013

2

Accounting policies {continued)

2.18 Operating leases: the Group as lessee

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recognised on a
straight line basis over the lease term, unless ancther systematic basis is representative of the time
pattem of the lessee's banefit from the use of the leased asset.

The Group has taken advantage of the optional exemption available on transition to FRS 102 which
allows lease incentives on leases entered into before the date of transition to the standard 01 January
2018 to continue to be charged over the pericd to the first market rent review rather than the term of
the lease.

2.19 Leased assets: the Group as lessee

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed
assets. Assets acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives. Assets acquired by hire purchase are depreciated over their useful lives. Finance |eases
are those where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership are assumed by the company.
Obligations under such agreements are included in creditors net of the finance charge allocated to
future periods. The finance element of the rental payment is charged to profit or loss so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of charge on the net obfigation outstanding in each period.

2.20 Pensions

Defined contribution pension plan

The Group operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the
contributions have been paid the Group has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an exﬁense in profit or loss when they fall due. Amounts not paid
are shown in accruals as a liability in the Balance sheet. The assets of the plan are held separately
from the Group in independently administered funds.

2.21 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

2.22 Borrow.ing costs

All borrawing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the 52 week period in which they are incurred,

Page 33



2OUA" Y HOTER AL, SAAL-TAES-AABTIDI T O nghls .13 apsounol”

QaTiML | OD T3V

. ATUWIMITATZ. LAIOMAVIR SHT OT 23T0W
erod R3aMID30 e AIAWI AQIN3T HASW S JHT A0R

{beuniinod) aviailog poitiuoasA S

-eesal ra qumD oilt :esenel gnitEran0 LS

Lot s migd enf! otz 8 ao 220l 10 mmq of bacwarla ee 2e2pal paveeqo 120nw hing 2irkinaR
.mal seasi

ano beaingéa—a‘. 18 sessi onds!s'.!a ne ppiz o svijnacrik f8 26 oldsviasser bas baviase amensB
acyut 24} o sviiaineeswg 2 2260 osemaleyz yertans eeelpu el agsel et wvo piesd and kipisyz
1azaz Bresol i 1o weu edi mont tfened 2'eazest arl Yo roolisg

sy SOE 289 of rotlzoed N6 uidRleve netamean I8aciiqo el 16 agsinevbe nojss 2er quoD ol
yisunsl, t0 babnalz arl? of fodharst Yo efsb el awiad ofrii baweine 2atael no 24vdnanmk seral cyxclis
1o nist avtt ¢ 87 1aritt waived e 1shiEm 1038 ad) o) honed erll ¥evo begiads ad at sunitnos al BI0S

.sspst arit

‘pazet) o8 quand edl ;¥aate haeselers
byxii ekligrat 2z bszilatqss 519 25268l eor Lad bae x1o81n0d> 82N, 0¥ Yehmu borisido elazzh
it bns Mgt w2ee! erh 10 1anorz e o DelEoawgab 318 s2ual aonenl v be doadn 3132847 &12ear
29253l 00naniF covil vtazu Yo Tavo bafsemigud ois 9esrinug e (I Baiupor #'au2A 26w Lt -
VIRGMed oy yo bsmuzes e qrimmeo Yo iz bne allencd orit 12 fis. ylisdr atedua Bty 630 18
of balssalle apisro sonsnit e to ton J10ho313 m babukm B Y BMBIME ASUL 20 LNUEEID
&ouboyg of ap o2 2e0’ 10 flong of boperia gy Ineinysq (3ine erit To frismels sunant oAT zbonsg b
Jbehog ruse rik grubnaltue ROUBEID 1o on Ae sperda 1o als skohsqinstaroo e
znnjaned 058
neiq neiénag noisudivinod baniteQ
6 & nlg neituohmon betitah A rgavolqms &i ¢t malg coltudidnos baniteb s 20131999 querdl edT
ol 83n0 Migno aiBisgur & ok nomudhiinos bex? axeq quond et rarey tebnu nely noizneq
’nor:sgl{do framyEs 1griud ¢a Ssi QuaIE) a1 g Nsed o Bri anmmdn!r*oa
bzsq jon zthuoms -.rub [H3| QB{U narhy 220! 10 foq (v BrnEga na 26 baNEeIN 935 anonludmnoo enT
ylaterages bled 31s naly ot o 2ledes 9dT Jasr'z =onaleh edt rl udsil & 28 elainods ni pwoliz g
2brud beicinimba yiinobaagebnt niquom® erit mott
- nmoant Jeetsinl 1SS
burtem taproin evioshe ) pizu 2241 160 o m bamnpoden 2 2moant reaind
zleod gajwanioB &S Y

bayiuoni 93 yerlt rdlw i boiteq Asaw S8 et m éeo! 10 Mo i b:,eingco.ﬁ a8 2lzon pnowoncd A

Efepad
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2

Accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Provisions for liabilities

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settiement by a transfer of economic benefit, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the cobligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to profit or loss in the year that the Group becomes aware of
the obligation, and are measured at the bast estimate at the Balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance sheet.

Dilapidation provision

The Group, as tenant, has full repairing cbligations on its leasehold properties. The dilapidation
provision is made based on the estimated costs necessary to restore the properties to their condition
at lease inception discounted to present vatue. These costs are capitalised and are depreciated over
the length of the lease. .

Onerous lease provision

When the Group exits a property but the property is empty, the Company provides for the remaining
fease payments in full which are discounted to present value, adjusted by the extent to which any
mitigation of these amounts by sub-etting is reasonably possible,

2.24 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the 52 week period comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in
profit or loss except that a charge attributable to an item of income and expense recognised as other
comprehensive income or to an item recognised directly in equity is alse recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and
the Group operate and generate income.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed by the balance sheet date, except that:

The recognition of deferred tax assets is mited to the extent that it is probable that they will be
recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and

Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax
allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of
business combinations, when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair values of
assets acquired and the future tax deductions available for them and the differences between the fair
values of liabilities acquired and the amount that wiill be assessed for {ax, Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

2. Accounting policies {continued}

2.25 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group but are
presented separately due to their size or incidence.

2.26 Research and development

In the research phase of an internal project it is not possible o demaonstrate that the project will
generate future economic benefits and hence all expenditure on research shall be recognised as an
expense when it is incurred. Intangible assets are recognised from the development phase of a
project if and only if certain specific criteria are met in order to demonstrate the asset will generate
probable future ecoromic benefits and that its cost can be reliably measured. The capitalised
development costs are subsequently amortised on a straight line basis over their useful economic
lives, which range from 3 to 6 years,

if it is not possible to distinguish between the research phase and the development phase of an
internal project, the expenditure is treated as if it were ait incurred in the research phase only.
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INVEST CO 1 LUIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

3. Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Group's accounting policies set out above management is required to make certain
estimates and judgements concerning the future. These judgements are regularly reviewed and updated
as necessary.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have had to make the following judgements:

Determine whether there are any indicators of impairment of the Group's fixed assets and investments
held by the Company. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger
cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. When an impairment
review is carried out, the recoverable value is determined based on value in use calculations which require
estimates to be made of future cash flows and an appropriate discount rate or assessment of the fair
value less costs to sell, which includes significant judgement to derive the valuation.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty:

a) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking in to account residual values where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, all relevant known factors are taken in to
account but there is inherent uncertainty present in making this assessment. Fixed assets are reviewed
for impairment if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may or may not be recoverable.

b) Inventory provisions
Company inventary levels are constantly reviewed and, should there be an indication of obsolescence, the
inventory is written down to its assessed net realisable value.

¢) Trade debtor provisions
Provisions for impairment are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able

to collect all amounts due according 1o the original terms of the receivable. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the future expected cash flows
associated with the impaired receivable.

d) Dilapidation provisions

Provisions are made based on the estimated costs necessary to restore properties to their condition at
lease inception discounted to present value. The calculation of the provision includes significant
judgement as the ultimate cost is dependent on the condition of the property at the time of exit.

€} Onerous |ease provision
The calculation of the onerous lease provision includes significant management judgement in particular
relating to the mitigation of lease costs through subseguent sublease income.

f) Deferred tax asset

Deferced tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against
the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits, The directors review the forecasts of
the business to assess the recoverability of these assets. The recognition of the asset includes significant
judgement as the reversal of the asset depends on forecasts.

Page 36



DocuSign Envelope 1D D18778AF-88AF-4AAG-A3F8-B3CADCODDESS

INVEST CO 1 UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

4. Turnover

An analysis of tumover by class of business is as follows:

52 week

52 week
period perlod
ended ended
29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
Sale of goods: food manufacturing 67,377 94,710
Sale of goods: restaurants 71,457 82,728
Licence fee income - 79
Franchise fee income 2,543 2,515
Rental income 645 635
142,022 180,667

- Analysis of turnover by country of destination:

52 week 52 week
period period
ended ended

29 30

December December

2019 2018

£000 £000

United Kingdom 140,098 179,284
Europe 1,5M 1,137
Rest of the world 333 246
142,022 180,667
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

5. Exceptional (income)/costs

Loan waiver (see note 35}

Impairment of Tangible Fixed Assets (see note 16)
Impairment of Intangible Fixed Assels

Other Items

6. Other operating income

Other operating income
Net rents receivable
Sundry income

52 week 52 week
period perfod
ended ended

29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
(42,924) -
547 6,761
- 2,755
44 -
{42,333) 9,516

52 week 52 week
period perlod
ended ended

29 30
December December
2019 2018

£000 £000

- 48

100 395

10 L]

110 452
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 DECEMBER 2019

7. Qperating profit/(loss)

The operating profit/{|loss} is stated after charging:
52 week 52 week

period period

ended ended

29 30

December December

2019 2018

£000 £000

Impairment of intangible assets including goodwilt - 2,755

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 4,841 5,371

Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets - 453

Amortisation of intangible assets including goodwill 1,574 927

Impairment of tangible fixed assats 548 6,761

Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 6 10
Hire of plant and machinery 98¢ 890

Hire of other assets* 7,940 14,367

Research and develcpment 10 -
Cost of goods sold as an expense 52,279 76,391

*The Graup has released accruals toltalling £2,185,917 relating to a rent holiday granted on rental of Eye
premises by Amber REI Holdings Limited and its subsidiary undertakings.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

8. Auditor's remuneration

52 week 52 week

period period
ended ended
29 ) 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates for the audit of the
Group's annual financial statements 24 18
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries 159 164
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's joint
ventures 20 32
203 214
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates in respect of:
Taxation advisory services 4 3
Other services 3s &1
43 54
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2019

9. Employees

Staff costs, including directors' remuneration, were as follows:

Group Group Company Cormgany

28 30 29 30

December December December December

2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

Wages and salaries 37,706 47,279 531 457
Social security costs 3,067 3,743 68 LY
Cost of defined contribution scheme 694 652 40 6
41,467 51674 639 514

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the 52 week period was as

follows:;

Group Group Company Company

52 week 52 week 52 week 52 week

period period period period

ended ended ended ended

29 30 29 30

December December December December

2019 2018 2019 2018

No. No., No. No,

Administration 248 282 5 5
Operations 361 738 - - -
Restaurant staff 1,214 1731 - -

1,823 2,751 5 5

1
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

10. Directors’ remuneration

52 week 52 week

period period
ended ended
29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
Directors' emoluments - 65
Company centributions to defined contribution pension schemes - 3
- 68
L ———-3

The directors were remunerated by Amber REI Holdings in the current year.

During the 52 week period retirement benefits were accruing to nono directors (2018 - 1) in respect of
defined contribution pension schemes.

The highest paid director received remuneration of £NIL (2018 - £65,000).

The value of the Company’s contributions paid to a defined contribution pensien scheme in respect of the
highest paid director amounted to £NIL (2018 - £3,000).

The key management personnel are considered to be the same as the directors of the Company.
Employers' NI costs in respect of directors for the year amounted to £NIL (2018 - £9,000).
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 23 August 2019 the Group sold 100% of the ordinary shares of Boparan Ventures Limited, renamed
Deep Blue Restaurants Holdings Limited, to Deep Blue Restaurants Limited. The group received £nil
consideration. The net liabilities at the date of disposal were £7,215,000 and a profit on disposal of
£7,215,0000 was recognised in the profit and loss account. During the year the Boparan Ventures Limited
Group contributed £8,239,000 (2018: £13,742,000) in revenue and £852,000 loss for the financial period
(2018: £4,108,000).

£000
Cash proceeds -
Net liabilities dispcosed of:
intangible fixed assets 3,145
Tangible fixed assets 3,145
Stocks ’ 144
Debtors o8
Cash 907
Creditars {10,813)
Provisions (4,051)
Net liabilities at the date of disposal (7,215)
Profit on disposal before tax 7,215
]

The net outflow of cash in respect of the sale of Deep Blue Restaurants Holdings Limited {formerly
Boparan Ventures Limited) is as follows:

£000
Cash consideration -
Cash transferred on disposal 907
Net outflow of cash 007
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENOED 29 DECEMBER 2019

12.

13.

Interest receivable

Share of associates’ interest receivable
Other interest receivable

Interest payable and simitar expenses

Bank interest payable

Other loan interest payable

Unwinding of discounted deferrad consideration (see note 21)
Preference share dividends

Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Other interest payable

52 week

52 week

period period
ended ended
25 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
- 3
3 3
3 6
52 week 52 week
period period
ended ended
28 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
275 211

53 -
6 30
783 808
82 23
1 32
1,200 1,104
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

14, Taxation

52 week 52 week

period period
ended ended
29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
Corporation tax
Current tax on profit’{loss) for the year - 53
- 53
Total current tax ' - 53
_—_—
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences {30) 151
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 1 a1
Total deferred tax (19) 70
Taxation on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities (19) 123
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

14,

Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the period

The tax assessed for the period is lower than (2018 - higher than) the standard rate of corporation tax in

the UK of 19% (2018 - 19%). The differences are explained below:

Profit’floss) on ordinary activities before tax

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19% (2018 - 19%)

Effects of:

Fixed asset timing differences

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation
Prior period adjustments

Non-taxable income

Difference in current and deferred tax rates
Unrecognised deferred tax

Total tax charge for the 52 week period

52 week 52 week

period period
ended ended
29 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
38,841 (33,023)
7,380 (6,274)

368 -
1,052 1,342
- 1,707

1" -
{10,413) (21)

40 -
1,543 3,369
{19} 123

The majority of non-taxable income relates to the tax effect of the exceptional gain on the loan waiver

which was a related party loan relationship.

" Factors that may affect future tax charges

The effective tax rate for the year was 19%. Following the budget announcement on 3 March 2021 the
government announced its intention to increase the corporation tax rate from 19% to 25% from 1 April
2023 on profits in excess of £250,000. At the date of signing these accounts that change has not been
substantively enacted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate in force at the time

they are expected to reverse.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

15. Intangible assets

Group
Development
expenditure Trademarks Goodwilt Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 31 December 2018 193 673 15,198 16,064
Additions 116 84 - 200
Disposals - - (5,566) {5,5686)
On acquisition of subsidiaries - - 1,235 1,235
At 29 December 2019 ) 757 10,867 11,933
Amortisation
At 31 December 2018 35 170 6,718 6,923
Charge for the 52 week period 37 64 1,476 1,574
On disposals - - {2,421) {2,421)
At 29 December 2019 72 231 5,773 6,076
Net book value
At 29 December 2019 237 526 5,094 5,857
At 30 December 2018 158 503 8,480 9,141

The development expenditure and trademarks have an estimated remaining useful life of 3 years.

Amortisation is charged to Administrative expenses.
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

15.

Intangible assets {continued)

Company

Cost
Additions

At 29 December 2019

Net hook value

At 29 December 2019

At 30 December 2018

_ Development

expenditure
£000

108

108

108
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

16.

Tangible fixed assets

Group

Cost

At 31 December 2018
Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary
Disposals

Disposal of subsidiary

At 29 December 2019

Depreciation
At 31 December 2018

Charge for the 52 week
pericd on owned assets

Disposal of subsidiary
Impairment charge

At 29 December 2019

Net book value
At 29 December 2019

At 30 December 2018

Long-term  Short-term

leasehold leasehold Plant and Motor Fixtures and
property property  machinery vehicles fittings
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
15,680 2,120 2,039 85 . 27,993
1,630 249 358 - 1,974
3 - 2,355 42 11

. - {2} - -
(2,101) (2,369) . - {14,024)
15,212 - 4750 127 15,954
7,612 631 767 32 21,427
1,330 1,107 284 8 1,610
{825) {1,738) - - {12,786)
233 - - - 288
8,350 - 1,051 40 10,539
6,862 - 3,699 87 5,415
-~ f—— - -3
8,068 1,489 1272 53 6,566
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

16.

Tangible fixed assets {continued)

Computer . Office
equipment  eguipment Total
£000 £000 £000

Cost .
At 31 December 2018 2,526 387 50,830
Additions 407 39 4,657
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 2,411
Disposals - - {2)
Disposal of subsidiary - - {18,494)
At 29 December 2018 2,933 426 39,402
Depreciation
At 31 December 2018 1,320 299 32,088
Charge for the 52 week period on owned assets 436 66 4,841
Disposal of subsidiary - - {15,349}
Impairment charge 27 - 548
At 29 December 2019 1,783 365 22128
Net book value
At 29 December 2019 1,150 81 17,274
At 30 December 2018 1,206 88 18,742
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16.

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The directors have reviewed the trading results and forecasts for the Group and recorded an impairment
charge of £548,000 (30 December 2018: £6,761,000) for those sites where the carrying value of the fixed
assets is not supported by the future forecast cashflows. The directors have taken into account the fair
value less costs to dispese of the assets when calculating the impairment charge.

The net book value of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts, included above, are as
follows: .

29 30

Dacember December

2019 2018

£000 £000

Plant and machinery 2,281 348
Fixtures and fittings - 24
2,281 ar2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2019

17.

Fixed asset investments

Group
Investments :
In Investments Other fixed
subsidiary in Listed asset
companies associates investments investmants Total
£000 £000 £0600 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 December 2018 2 3175 5,106 €04 8,887
Transfers inira group {2) 178 - - 176
Share of profit/(loss) - 453 - - 453
At 29 December 2019 - 3,806 5,106 604 9,516
Impairment
At 31 December 2018 - - 5,106 345 5,451
Charge for the period - - - 259 259
At 29 December 2019 - - 5,106 604 5710
Net book value
At 29 December 2019 - 3,806 - - 3,806
P e ————
At 30 December 2018 2 3,175 - 259 3436
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17.

Fixed asset investments (continued)

Company

Investments
in Investments Other fixed
subsidiary in Listed asset
companies associates investments investments Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 December 2018 604 4,956 5,106 604 11,270
Additions 283 . - - 283
Transfers 889 (908) - 19 -
At 29 December 2019 1,776 4,048 5,106 623 11,553
Impairment
At 31 Dacember 2018 - - 5,106 345 5,451
Charge for the period - - - 195 195
At 29 December 2019 - - - 5,106 540 5,646
Net book value
At 29 December 2019 1,776 4,048 - 83 5,907
At 30 December 2018 604 4,956 - 259 5,819

The transfer between investment in associates and investments in subsidiary companies reflects the
change in ownership of Corkers Crisps Limited which the Company now has control of.

On 19 September 2019 the Company acquired 2.97% of the share capital in Corkers Crisps Ltd for total
consideration of £283,000.

On 23 August 2019 the Company sold 100% of the ordinary shares of Boparan Ventures Limited. The
sale of Boparan Ventures Limited included Harry Ramsden's Limited and llderstone Limited,
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17.

Fixed asset investments {continued)
Direct subsidiary undertakings

The following were direct subsidiary undertakings of the Company:

All undertakings are incorporated in the United Kingdom except liderstone Limited.

Name Registered office Principal activity
Shazan Colmore Court, @ Colmore Row, Food processing
Foods Birmingham, West Midlands, B3 2BJ

Limited

(formerly 1

Stop Halal

Limited)

Pie Company Colmare Court, 9 Colmore Row, Non trading

(The) Limited Birmingham, B3 2BJ

Thyme Food Colmore Court, 9 Colmore Row, Premium food retail

UK Limited* Birmingham, B3 2BJ
Food Utopia 3 Godwin Road, Earlstrees Industrial Food processing
Limited * Estate, Corby, Northamptonshire, NN17

408
Boparan Colmore Court, 9 Colmore Row, Intermediate holding
Restaurants Birmingham, West Midlands, United company
Holdings Kingdom, B3 28)

Limited*
Lo Dough Ltd Dane Mili, Bridgefield Street, Rochdale, Food processing
Greater Manchester, England, OL11

4EY
Corkers Mount Pleasant Farm Main Street, Food processing
Crisps Pymaor, Ely, Cambridgeshire, CB6 2DY

Limited*

Class of
shares

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

Holding
100%

100%
88.89%
90%

80%

70%

52.9%

*These entities are exempt from the requirement of the Companies Act relating to the audit of individual

financial statements by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act 2006.
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17.

Fixed asset investments (continued)

Indirect subsidiary undertakings

The following were indirect subsidiary undertakings of the Company:

Name

Shazan Frozen Foods Limited (formerly Shazan Foods

Limited)

Letham Poultry Limited

Cinnamon Collection Limited**

Indian Restaurants Limited*

Fishworks Restaurants Limited (formerly CKN2
Limited)

Indian Restaurants (City) Limited

Giraffe Concepts Limited**

EED Middle East Limited

Ed's Easy Diner Limited

Ed's Easy Diner International Limited

Boparan Ventures Limited {formerly Ed's Easy Diner
Holdings Limited)

SC Restaurants (UK) Limited {formerly Apple Pan
Limited)

Gourmet Burger Kitchen (UK) Limited {formerly
Fishworks 2 Limited)**

Principal activity
Food processing

Dormant
Licensed restaurants
Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

Licensed restaurants
Non-trading

Dormant
Non-trading
Dormant

Dormant

Restaurant operations

Class of
shares

Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding
100%

100%

85%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
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17.

Fixed asset investments (continued)
Indirect subsidiary undertakings {continued)

*indian Restaurants Limited is exempt from the requirement of the Companies Act relating to the audit of
individual financial statements by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act 2008,

**Cinnamon Collection Limited, Giraffe Concepts Limited and Gourmet Burger Kitchen (UK) Limited
(formerly Fishwerks 2 Limited) are directly owned by Boparan Restaurants Holdings Limited.

Shazan Frozen Foods Limited {formerly Shazan Foods Limited) and Letham Poultry Limited are directly
owned by Shazan Foods Limited (formerly 1Stop Halal Limited). Letham Poultry Limited was dissolved on
9 Aprit 2019,

Indian Restaurants Limited, Fishworks Restaurants Limited {formerly CKN2 Limited) and Indian
Restaurants {City) Limited are directly owned by Cinnamon Collection Limited.

Giraffe Concepts Limited is directly owned by Boparan Restaurants Holdings Limited. EED Middle East
Limited, Ed's Easy Diner Limited, Ed's Easy Diner International Limited, Ed's Easy Diner Holdings Limited
(formerly Boparan Ventures Limited) and SC Restaurants {UK) Limited (formerly Apple Pan Limited} are
directly owned by Giraffe Concepts Limited. Both EED Middle East Limited and Ed's Easy Diner
International Limited were dissolved on 4 February 2020.

Deep Blue Restaurants Holdings Limited (formerly Boparan Ventures Limited) transferred to Boparan
Restaurants Holdings Limited its beneficial interest in 100% of the issued ordinary share capital in
Gourmet Burger Kitchen (UK) Limited (formerly Fishworks 2 Limited) pursuant to a share puichase
agreement dated 23 August 2019.

Subsidiaries disposed of during the period

On 23 August 2019 the Group sold 100% of the ordinary shares of Deep Blue Restaurants Holdings
Limited {formerly Boparan Ventures Limited) to Deep Blue Restaurants Limited. At the time of disposal
Deep Blue Restaurants Holdings directly owned HRFC Limited, Harry Ramsden's Limited, Coldraw
Services Limited, Chide South Limited, D J H Leisure Limited, Harry Ramsden's (Restaurant) Limited and
liderstone Limited, See note 11 for further details.

Associates

The following are associates of the Company:

Class of
Name Principal activity shares Holding
Buffaload Logistics Limited Logistics Ordinary 50%
Table Art Limited Design and development Ordinary 50%

of table centrepieces
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18.

Stocks
Group Group  Company Company
29 30 29 30
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 2,376 1,539 - -
Work in progress (goods to be sold) 125 - . -
Finished goods and goods for resale 1,915 1,703 - -
4416 3,242 - -

The difference between purchase price or production cost of stocks and their replacement cost is not

material.

An impairment loss of £Nil (2018 - £Nil) was recognised in cost of sales against stock during the 52 week

period due to slow-moving and obsolete stock.
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19.

Debtors
Group Group Company  Company
29 30 29 30
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Due after more than one year :
Other debtors 4086 419 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 141 - - -
547 419 - -

Other debtors due after more than one year comprise deposits which are repayable on the expiration of

property leases held in respect of land and buitdings.

Prepayments due after more than one year relate to lease premiums. Lease premiums are usually paid
as consideration to the landlord or an outgoing tenant of a property befare the expiry of the lease term on
that property. These payments are treated as prepaid operating lease costs and classified as such.
These costs are subsequently amortised over the period of the lease term.

Group Group  Company  Company
28 30 29 30
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 6,950 6,691 39 a4
Amounts owed by group companies - - 3,051 2,323
Amounts owed by related parties 472 - - -
Other debtors 1,427 211 - 21
Prepayments and accrued income 3,188 5,494 - -
Tax recoverable 23 35 - -
Deferred taxation (note 26) 74 82 - -
12,134 13,213 3,080 2,438

Included within other debtors is share capital not paid of £1,000 (30 December 2018: £1,000).
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2.

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group Company  Company
29 30 29 30
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £060 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 2,795 8,370 58 120
2,795 8,370 58 120
E——
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Group Group  Company  Company
29 30 29 30
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade finance facilities and bank overdrafts
(secured) 4,518 10,345 - -
Lease incentives 106 224 - -
Trade creditors 12,227 16,481 16 50
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 11,775 11,775
Amounts owed to other participating interests 96,770 130,950 13,439 16,338
Other taxation and social security 2,962 3,947 28 1
Obligations under finance lease and hire
purchase contracts 556 226 - -
Other creditors 884 2,318 - 1
Accruals and deferred income 4,336 7,181 107 204
122,359 171,672 25,385 28,369

The bank averdraft is secured over the assets of certain Group's subsidiary undertakings including
Shazan Foods Limited and Shazan Frozen Foods Limited.

Within trade finance facilities and bank overdrafts are invoice discounting facilities of £4,115,000. The
trade finance facility is secured over the frade debtors of Shazan Foods Limited, Shazan Frozen Foods
Limited and Corkers Crisps Limited.

Other creditors in the prior year include deferred consideration on the acquisition of Shazan Frozen
Foods Lirmnited {formefy Shazan Foods Limited) by Shazan Foods Limited (formerly 1 Stop Halal Limited}
on 24 December 2014. The discounted deferred consideration amounted to £1,438,000 and is payable
over a 4 year period. At the year end the amounts reported are net of discounting taking into account the
time value of money, of which £nil (30 December 2018 £342,000) falls due within one year. During the
period £6,000 (30 December 2018: £30,000) of the discounting on the deferred consideration has been
unwound {see note 13).
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22.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group  Company  Company

29 30 29 30

December December December December

2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank foans 308 - - -

Net obligations under finance leases and hire

purchase contracts 699 120 - -
Preference shares 8,082 8,082 - -
Lease incenlives 722 1,403 - -
9,811 9,605 - -

The assets under finance lease are secured over the relevant fixed assets of certain of the Group's
subsidiary undertakings including Shazan Foods Limited and Corkers Crisps Limited.

The preference shares were issued by Cinnamon Collection Limited. Each preference share carriad no
right to vote. As to dividends, the profits of the Company shall be applied in paying a fixed cumulative
dividend of 10% of the issue price per preference share. On a retum of assets, the assets of the
Company shall be applied in paying first, a sum equal to any arrears of preference dividends, next in
paying the issue price of such preference shares, and next in paying any accrued interest of unpaid

preference dividends. The preference shares are redeemable.
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23.

24,

Loans

Group Group
28 30
December December
2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade finance facilities and bank overdrafls (secured) 4,518 10,345
4,518 10,345
Amounts falling due after more than 5 years
Bank loans 308 -
4,826 10,345

The bank loans are secured against an unlimited debenture and a guarantee for the principal amount of
£550,000 from Basil Taylor and Gail Taylor together with a first Jegal charge over freehold land and

buitdings of Corkers Crisps Limited.

Bank loans due in more than five years are repayable in equal instatments and attract a market rate of

interest.

Hire purchase and finance leases

Minimum lease payments under hire purchase fall due as follows:

Group Group

29 30

December December

2019 2018

£000 £000

Within one year 556 226
Between 1-5 years 699 120
1,255 346
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25.  Financial instruments

Group Group  Company Company
29 30 29 30
December December December December
2018 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 12,050 16,391 3,148 2,538
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost (120,298) (167,621) {25,337) {28,323)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash, trade debtors, amounts owed by group
undertakings, amounts owed by related parties and other debtors.

Financial liabilities measured at amertised cost comprise bank loans and overdraft, trade creditors,
amounts owed to group undertakings, amounts owed to related pariies, cbligations under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts, other creditors and accruals.
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Deferred taxation

Group
2018 2018
£000 £000
At i:eginning of year 82 72
Charged to the profit or loss 19 10
Disposal of subsidiary (27} -
At end of year 74 82

There is an unprovided deferred tax asset of approximately £7m (30 December 2018. £14rn) comprising
losses sustained in the operating subsidiaries and fixed asset timing differences. This asset has not been
recognised due to unceriainties over future trading profits being sufficient to recover the asset in the

foreseeable future.

The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:

Group Group

As restated

29 30

December December

2019 2018

£000 £000

Accelerated capital allowances 51 82
Short term timing differences 2 -
Losses and other deductions ) 21 -

74 82

Page 63



DocuSign Envelope ID: D16778AF-68AF-4AAG-AIF8-B3CADCODDESS

INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

27.

Provisions
Group
Onerous’
lease Dilapidation
provision  provision Total

£000 £000 £000
Al 31 December 2018 3,639 1,493 5132
Disposal of subsidiary (2,648) {1,403) {4,051)
Utilised in 52 week period {991) - (991)
At 29 December 2019 - a0 S0

The onerous lease provision relates to a lease held by Shazan Foods Limited (formerly 1Stop Halal
Limited) for the Haughley Park site that is no longer in use and sites held by Harry Ramsden's Limited.
That company is obliged to pay rent on the Shazan Foods Limited (formerly 1 Stop Halal Limited) lease
on this site untit May 2019.

Harry Ramsden’s Limited has exited from 4 properties and has provided for the losses that it expects to
incur up to the end of the lease. Harry Ramsden's Limited has been disposed of during the pericd (see
note 11).
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28,

- 29

Share capital
29
December
2019
£000
Shares classifiad as equity
Aljotted, called up and fully paid
1,000,000 (2018 - 1,000,000) Ordinary shares of £1.00 each 1,000
e —
25 December
2019
£000
Shares classified as debt
Allotted, called up and fully paid
8,082,147 (2018 - 8,082,147) Preference Shares shares of £1.00 each 8,082

30
December
2018

1,000

30
December
2018
EQOC

8,082

Reserves
Profit and loss account

The profit and loss account contains all current and prior period retained earnings.

No adjustment has been made for the share of losses attributable to non-controlling interasts as there is
no contractual obligation for the nen-controlling interest to make good these losses. The share of profits
attributable to non-controlling interests of £1,868,000 in the current year has not been recognised as they
relate to the reversal of previously unrecognised losses. Losses of £435,000 were not recognised in the

prior year.

At the year end the share of the losses attributable to the non-controlling interest was £7,224 000 (30

December 2018: £4,553,000).
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30. Business combinations

On 19 September 2012 the group acquired control of Corkers Crisps Limited through the purchase of a
further 2,349,721 shares, for total consideration of £283,000, increasing its shareholding from 50% to
53%.

Acquisition of Corkers Crisps Ltd

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

29
December
Fair value
Book value adjustment Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible 2,411 - 2,411
2411 . - 2411
Current assets
Stocks 660 - 660
Debtors 1,612 - 1,612
Cash at bank and in hand 240 - 240
Total assets . 4,923 - 4,923
Creditors
Due within one year {3,170) . (3,170)
Due after more than one year (2,757) - {2,757)
Total identifiable net liabilities {1,004} - {1,004)
Goodwill of £1,235,000 and Non-confrolling interests of £531,000 1,766
Total purchase consideration 762
£531,000 of Non-controfling interests is included in the Goodwill.
Consideration
£000
Cash 762
Total purchase consideration 762
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30.

3.

32,

Business combinations {continued)

The resuits of Corkers Crisps Lid since its acquisition are as follows:

Turnover

Resuit for the period

Capital commitments

29
December
Current
period since
acquisition
£000

3,116
——————— —

128

The Group had capital commitments at 29 December 2019 of £NIL (30 December 2018: £NiL).

Pension commitments

The Group operates a defined contributions pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are hekd
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge
represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to £684,000 {30 December
2018: £457,000). Contributions totalling £108,000 (30 December 2018: £129,000} were payable to the

fund at the Balance sheet date,
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33

Commitments under operating leases

At 29 December 2019 the Group and the Company had future minimum lease payments due under non-

cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

Land and buildings

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Other

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Group Group
29 30
December December
2019 2018

£000 £000
5,182 9,565
19,752 32,862
25,361 38,339
50,295 80,766
Group Group
29 30
December December
2019 2018

£000 £000
1,144 5,407

833 8,218

3,445 15,264
5,422 28,889

The Group has entered into sub-lease arrangements on certain properties. Future minimum sublease
payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases are as follows:

Sub lease

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not [ater than 5 years
Later than 6 years

Other financial commitments

Group Group

29 December 30 December
2019 2018

£000 £000

624 649

2,264 2,489

2,523 3,245

5411 6,383

The Group and Company had no contingent liabilities at 28 December 2019 (30 December 2018: £Nif).

Page €8



DocuSign Envelope ID: D16778AF-68AF-4AAB-AIF3-BACADCODDESS

INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

35.

Related party transactions

With the exception of transactions between the parent cormpany and subsidiaries that are not wholly
owned as noted below, the Group has taken advantage of the exemption to disclose transactions or
balances between wholly owned subsidiary undertakings,

Related party transactions and balances

29 December 2019

Amber RE| Holdings Limited
and subsidiary undertakings
Boparan Haoldings Limited and
subsidiary undertakings

Hook 2 Sisters Limited
Lakeside Food Group Limited
Bernard Matthews Foods
Limited

30 December 2018

Amber REI Holdings Limited
and subsidiary undertakings
Boparan Holdings Limited and
subsidiary undertakings

Hook 2 Sisters Limited
Lakeside Food Group Limited

Salesto Purchases
related from refated
parties parties

£000 £000
- {28,595}
1,227 {1,488)
8 -
110 -
4176 -
306 {30,461}
3,966 {173}
8 -
328 -

On demand,

interest

free,

unsecured

Rents paid loans from
to related related
parties parties
£000 £000

- (96,298)

- (104,739)

Amounts
due from /
{owed to)
related
parties
£000

2,130

332
4
(5)

(498)

(1,929)

142
2

b ]
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INVEST CO 1 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2019

36.

Sales Purchases Funding Amounts

to from provided to owed by
subsidiary subsidiary subsidiary subsidiary
undertaking undertaking undertaking undertaking

£000 £000 £000 £000
29 December 2019
Lo Dough Limited - - 705 1,814
Food Utopia Lirnited - - - -
Brand Street Limited - - - -
Thyme Food UK Limited - - 443 -
30 December 2018
Lo Dough Limited - - 519 1,109
Food Utopia Limited - - - 8,725
Brand Street Limited - - - 350
Thyme Food UK Limited . - - 576 1,681

e ——

Loans to Food Utopia Limited, Brand Street Limited and Thyme Food UK Limited were fully waived in the
year. A loan of £5,106,000 to Invest Co 1 Limited from a2 Related Party was waived in the pericd, giving
rise to an exceplional gain (Note 5). A loan of £26,163,000 to Food Utopia from a Related Party was
waived in the period, giving rise to an exceptional gain (Note 5). Likewise, prior to the sale of Boparan
Ventures Limited, a loan of £11,655,000 from a Related party was waived, again giving rise to an
exceptional gain.

The preference shares as shown in note 22 are held by AREIL. The Group accrued interest of £783,489
(30 December 2018, £808,215) on these preference shares held by AREIL. The balance outstanding at

the period end is £3,1685,509 (30 December 2018: £2,382,020) and is included within the creditor of
£96,298,000 above.

Controlling party

The ultimate controlling parties are R § Boparan and B K Boparan,

The largest and smallast group in which the resuits of the Company are consoclidated is that headad by
Invest Co 1 Limited.
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37,

Post balance sheet events

As at 29 December 2019 there was no explicit evidence of hurnan to human transmission of COVID 19,
The subsequent spread of COVID 19 does not provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
year end and is therefore considered to be a non adjusting post balance sheet event in accordance with
Section 32 of FRS 102. Accordingly, the development of COVID 18 has not been reflected in the directors’
assessment of the measurement of assets and liabilities such as impairment of tangible assets, expected
credit losses and the recoverability of deferred tax assets.

Covid 19 impact on the manufacturing businesses was minimal overall. Factory operations continued
throughout while following government guidelines around social distancing and health & safety measures.

The Restaurants business took immediate steps to safeguard the health and wellbeing of employees and
customers in line with government guidelines, The UK Govemnment announced all restaurants were o
close on 20 March 2020. All employees based in the restaurants and a large number of head-office based
Restaurants employees were furloughed, with the remaining Head Office employees working from home.
Al the restaurants reopened and traded for lakeaway, delivery and eat in during the summer and early
autumn, taking advantage of the Eat Out to Help Qut scheme in August, All sites closed again from 5
November 2020 for eat in due to the 2nd lockdown and whilst a number re opened on 2 December 2020
depending upon the relevant tier for each location full closure for eat in came into effect on 24th
December 2020. A roadmap to lifting the restrictions was announced by the Prime Minister on 22nd
February 2021 which will see outdoor restaurant spaces open on 12th April and eat in resuming on 17th

May.

Carluccio’s (UK) Limited (formerly Anglesey Poultry Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Boparan
Restaurants Holdings Limited, acquired the trade, brand and selected assets of Carluccic’'s on 21 May
2020. Fishworks 2 Limited was renamed Gourmet Burger Kitchen (UK) Limited on 6 November 2020,
following the acquisition of the trade, brand and selected assets of Gourmet Burger Kitchen on 14 QOctober
2020,

During the final quarter of 2020 the business signed a licence agreement with a leading Halal food
business. The key part of this agreement is that all sales of Shazan branded frozen products will be made
through this business, with Shazan Frozen Foods Limited no longer selling directly to retail or wholesale
customers. The partnering business will sell the Shazan brand frozen range under licence with a royalty
payable to Shazan Frozen Foods Limited who retain full ownership of the brand. This long term agreement
is a strategic move to achieve a sustained profitable run rate free from trading risk.
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